

# DORSET COUNCIL - PLACE AND RESOURCES OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

# MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON MONDAY 19 OCTOBER 2020

**Present:** Cllrs Daryl Turner (Chairman), Les Fry (Vice-Chairman), Pauline Batstone, Ryan Hope, Sherry Jespersen, Carole Jones, Val Pothecary, Andrew Starr and Roland Tarr

Apologies: Cllrs David Taylor

**Also present:** Cllr Cherry Brooks, Cllr Jon Andrews, Cllr Richard Biggs, Cllr Ray Bryan, Cllr Simon Gibson, Cllr Matthew Hall, Cllr Rebecca Knox, Cllr Nocturin Lacey-Clarke, Cllr Emma Parker, Cllr Molly Rennie, Cllr Jane Somper, Cllr Gary Suttle, Cllr David Walsh, Cllr Peter Wharf and Cllr Graham Carr-Jones

## Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):

John Sellgren (Executive Director, Place), John Newcombe (Service Manager, Licensing & Community Safety), Graham Duggan (Head of Community & Public Protection), Lindsey Watson (Senior Democratic Services Officer), George Dare (Democratic Services Officer Apprentice) and Megan Rochester (Democratic Services Officer Apprentice)

### 9. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of the Place and Resources Overview Committee held on 21 September 2020 were agreed as a correct record and would be signed by the Chairman at a later date.

## 10. **Declarations of interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

## 11. Chairman's Update

The Chairman noted that reports relating to performance management would now be considered by the scrutiny committees. When the performance management platform was available, the overview committee agendas would contain a link to this for information.

In addition, the Chairman noted that there were 93 policies in the area of Place and that these were currently being reviewed by Cabinet members, lead members and officers. This would feed into the forward plan for this committee.

## 12. **Public Participation**

There were no questions or statements from members of the public or local organisations.

## 13. Statement of Licensing Policy 2021 - 2026

The committee received and considered a report of the Service Manager, Licensing and Community Safety, which set out the requirement of the Council, as Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003, to publish a Statement of Licensing Policy at least every five years. The purpose of the policy statement was to define how the Council would exercise its responsibilities under the Act, and had been prepared by officers, considered at an informal meeting of the Licensing Committee and had been published, in draft format, for a period of public consultation of 12 weeks, between 6 July and 27 September 2020. The Service Manager, Licensing and Community Safety noted that a few amendments had been made to the draft policy following the public consultation period.

The reviewed Statement of Licensing Policy would be considered by the Licensing Committee and then on to Full Council for adoption.

The Place and Resources Overview Committee had the opportunity at this meeting to review the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and provide any comments to the Licensing Committee.

Councillors considered the issues arising from the report and during discussion the following points were raised:

- The Chairman asked that the use of 12/24 hour timings in the draft policy be standardised
- Councillors supported the contents of the draft policy and felt that it covered all issues in depth. Councillors expressed their thanks to officers involved in drafting the report and to the Chairman, Vice-chairman and members of the Licensing Committee for their role
- A point was raised that there had not been many responses to the public consultation but it was felt that this reflected the strength of the draft policy
- A discussion was held in respect of whether a late night levy should be available to the council and whether this was something that the committee could recommend to the Licensing Committee for further consideration
- Some views in support of having a late night levy were expressed and it was noted that the council could have the ability to have a late night levy which could only be used if necessary. This could be progressed as a separate issue to the draft policy
- The Service Manager, Licensing and Community Safety reported that this issue was to be raised at Licensing Committee on 22 October with a view to bringing a report back to the Licensing Committee at an appropriate time in order to fully consider all related issues. It was noted that a late night levy if agreed, would apply to the whole council area and all premises, although there was the ability to exclude certain types of premises

- A point was noted that applying a late night levy could be seen as unfair on the late night sector, alongside other cost factors that they had to consider
- All these comments could be taken on board by the members of the Licensing Committee
- Further to the discussion, it was agreed that this committee would not make a recommendation in respect of the late night levy and that it was noted that the issue would be raised at the Licensing Committee with a future report on the issues arising.

Comments would be passed to the Licensing Committee when they considered the draft policy at their meeting on 22 October 2020.

## 14. Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2021 - 2024

The committee received and considered a report of the Service Manager, Licensing and Community Safety, which set out the requirement of the Council, as Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003, to publish a Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy at least every three years. The purpose of the policy statement was to define how the Council would exercise its responsibilities under the Act, and had been prepared by officers, considered at an informal meeting of the Licensing Committee and had been published, in draft format, for a period of public consultation of 12 weeks, between 6 July and 27 September 2020.

The reviewed Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy would be considered by the Licensing Committee and then on to Full Council for adoption.

The Place & Resources Overview Committee had the opportunity at this meeting to review the draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy and provide any comments to the Licensing Committee.

Councillors welcomed the Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy and a point was made that the policy enabled the council to review a license and take action where appropriate. Reference was made to the work undertaken by the Chairman and Vice-chairman of the Licensing Committee in this area and thanks was expressed for the work of the Licensing Committee and officers involved.

Comments would be passed to the Licensing Committee when they considered the draft policy at their meeting on 22 October 2020.

## 15. Draft Place and Resources Overview Committee Forward Plan

Councillors considered the draft forward plan for the Place and Resources Overview Committee. The Chairman noted that information on policies within the Place directorate had been circulated and councillors and officers had been asked to comment on these and note priorities for review. The use of working groups for some of this work could be considered. In addition, the Reset and Recovery Executive Advisory Panel had recently produced a report and this work was to be handed over to the overview committees. Councillors considered potential items for inclusion on the committee's forward plan and the following points were referred to during discussion:

- Local Plan a request was made for consultation with this committee to be included on the published timetable for work on the new Local Plan. The Chairman noted that discussions on this area were ongoing and included consideration of the impact of the Government White Paper on Planning. This would be reviewed with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and an update provided
- A review of the council's 20mph policy would be included on the committees forward plan
- Issues around work on economic development, grid capacity, car parking charges and asset management were all raised. In response, the Chairman noted that grid capacity may be looked at by the Place and Resources Scrutiny Committee and that a review of assets was currently ongoing
- Reference was made to the Executive Advisory Panel looking at economic development, what stage this work had reached and a request made for their recommendations to be shared with this committee. The current position with this work would be clarified
- A general point was made with regard to the list of Executive Advisory Panels and where this work may be handed over to the overview or scrutiny committees.

### 16. Urgent items

The Chairman raised one item under urgent items in respect of recent changes in respect of car parking and a press release that had been issued by the council setting out the changes. The Chairman noted that he wished to raise this issue with committee members under this agenda item for the reason of reputational damage to the council of the press release on car parking.

The Chairman referred to a press release issued the previous week in respect of the raising of car park charges and that it was understood that there had been no consultation with councillors, parish and town councils or the council's overview or scrutiny committees. He felt that the full impact of this had not been considered alongside other highways issues, impact on lower paid people in the tourism industry and on the future devolution of services. He sought the views of members of the committee.

Councillor C Brooks, the Lead Member for Highways, supporting the Portfolio Holder for Highways, Travel and Environment, provided an overview of work being undertaken in this area and noted that this was the first step at looking at harmonisation of issues such as charges. A review of the wider policy and charges across Dorset was to be undertaken and this would include consultation with councillors and committees at the appropriate time.

Councillors considered the issues arising and reference was made to the need to consider the wider implications of raising charges including the

movement of cars between car parks, encouraging the use of park and ride and the impact of evening charges on the evening economy. Links to economic development were also noted. A request was made that all of these issues should be taken into account when a review of parking was undertaken.

In response, Councillor Brooks noted that work was being undertaken in respect of items such as residents permits and displacement to on-street parking. There was an awareness of the potential impact on the economy. A lot of work was being undertaken by the Portfolio Holder and officers in this area.

A comment was made that there needed to be appropriate consultation and for wider impacts to be taken into consideration.

The Chairman noted that the scrutiny committee could look at how the recent decisions had been made. The comments of this committee in respect of this issue would be made available to members of Cabinet.

## 17. Exempt Business

There was no exempt business.

Duration of meeting: 10.00 - 11.01 am

# Chairman

.....